
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
WINDHAM, CT. 

 
MINUTES 

 
February 7, 2008 
 
The Windham Zoning Board of Appeals held it’s meeting on February 7, 2008 in Town 
Hall.  Chairman Bob Coutu called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M.  Members present 
were Al Beaulieu, Jose Cruz, Charles Krich, Jerry Hart, Susan Fiegel-Rapp, Bob Coutu 
and Renee Harris.  Also present was Town Planner James Finger.   Voting members are 
Jose Cruz, Charles Krich, Susan Fiegel-Rapp, Bob Coutu and Al Beaulieu. 
 

 I)  Public Hearings 
 

a) Eastern Valley LLC – two Special Exception applications for property identified 
on Assessor’s Map 7-10, block 254, lot 26. 

 
Planner Finger’s staff report explained that these applications involve a 
reconfiguration of three different parcels that have been consolidated and now are 
to be divided into two building lots.  This application was first heard in 
December, but we were delayed to await Inland Wetlands approval. 
 
Autumn Ridge – This is an application for a Special Exception as a non-standard 
lot under Section 3.3.2 for frontage reduction of 175 feet in an R-1 District to 
approximately 150+- feet. 
 
Mullen Hill Road – This is an application for a Special Exception for a rear lot in 
accordance with Section 78.2.  The minimum frontage is only 50 feet, and they 
have 100 feet.  The lot qualified for approval. 
 
Wes Wentworth, from Wentworth Civil Engineers, LLC, Lebanon, CT. said he 
presented the applications in December.   The Board tabled its decision to await 
approval from the Inland Wetlands Commission, and that approval has been 
received, he said.  We also received approval from the Health District for our on-
site septic systems and wells.  He identified both parcels, Mullen Hill Road and 
Autumn Ridge on the map.    The entire parcel is a 26-acre lot, which will be 
reconfigured into two separate building lots, he said.  This parcel was left on 
Autumn Ridge when the Indian Hollow Subdivision was developed and the road 
constructed.  We are seeking a frontage reduction for the property on Autumn 
Ridge Road and approval for a rear lot for the property on Mullen Hill Road.  The 
parcel on Autumn Ridge has 157 feet of frontage while the frontage requirement 
is 175 feet.  We are seeking a reduction of 11% to allow for this lot, said 
Wentworth.     
 

 1



Board member Al Beaulieu said there is a right-of-way in there and it looks like it 
will be going right in the middle of the house that you will be building.  Mr. 
Wentworth explained that is the AT&T fiber-optic line, and it is along the back 
side of the neighboring lots.  Beaulieu asked if the abutting property owners were 
notified of the public hearing.  Planner Finger said the applicant did place the 
placards for the public hearing in December.  Mr. Wentworth said he sent out the 
notices again as a courtesy.  
 
Chairman Bob Coutu asked if there was anyone in the audience to speak to the 
application.  There was no one to speak.  Planner Finger said he received a 
telephone call from a lady on Mullen Hill Road.  She was concerned about more 
houses back there and he said he assured her that there will be only two houses on 
the 26 acres.  The way the lots are configured with the wetlands on the property, 
(there is a substantial amount of wetlands) and with the Declaration of 
Restrictions on use of the wetland area, there is very limited opportunity for any 
further development.   If at any point in the future they wanted to add more 
houses they would have to come back to the Board seeking approval. 
 
As there were no other comments from Board members, the public hearing was 
closed.   
 
Al Beaulieu made a motion to grant a Special Exception to Eastern Valley, LLC 
from Section 3.3.2 for property on Autumn Ridge (identified on Assessor’s Map 
7-20, block 254, lot 26) for an 11% frontage reduction (non-standard lot), and 
Susan Fiegel-Rapp seconded the motion.  Voting in favor of the motion were Al 
Beaulieu, Susan Fiegel-Rapp, Bob Coutu, and Jose Cruz.  Voting in opposition 
was Charles Krich.  The motion carried.   
 
Al Beaulieu made a motion to grant a Special Exception to Eastern Valley LLC 
from Section 78.2 for property on Mullen Hill (identified on Assessor’s Map 7-
20, block 254, lot 26) Road in order to create a rear lot and Susan Fiegel-Rapp 
seconded the motion.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 
b) Starbucks Coffee Co. -327 Boston Post Road, No. Windham – application for 

a variance to allow a larger menu board. 
 

Planner Finger’s report stated that the maximum limit under the regulations is 24 
square feet, but their standard menu requires 32 square feet.  Given the site 
configuration and the fact that the menu board is not likely to affect any 
neighboring property, (town) staff does not object to the variance being granted. 
 
Laura Betlow, agent for Starbucks Coffee Co. and Mark Swiderski, Construction 
Manager for Starbucks Coffee Co. spoke to the application.  Ms. Betlow said 
abutting properties were notified.  She said Starbucks is seeking a variance 
because of the size of their menu board.  The Zoning Regulations specify 24 
square feet, but the standard Starbucks menu board is 32 square feet.  She said 

 2



they have found that this configuration works best for servicing the customer.  
She referred to the photos of the proposed menu board.  Chairman Bob Coutu 
asked if the menu board could be made smaller.  Mr. Swiderski said we have 
18,000 stores of which 3,000 are drive-thru’s and to make a special set of these 
inserts (they are changed about 3-4 times a year) would be difficult.  Al Beaulieu 
referred to the menu board signs for McDonalds.  He said their menu board signs 
(located in the back) are a pretty good size also.  Planner Finger said the one for 
McDonalds went through the Board and Burger King also had to go through this 
board for a variance because they wanted a second one.  They all seem to want 
bigger signs so maybe we need to look at the regulations, said Finger.  The 
previous Zoning Officer approved the menu board at Dunkin Donuts.  Planner 
Finger said the main concern with menu boards is the speaker and light that they 
produce and how that affects the neighbors.  This one is not going to have a 
substantial effect on neighbors because it is in a commercial area.  They have had 
a menu board there before for the former business, Delicity, and before that 
Baker’s Dozen.  This one is a little bigger, he said. 
 
Audience comments: 1) Ted Montgomery, Economic Development Director for 
the Town of Windham, said he is very much in favor of the proposal.  He 
welcomed Starbucks to Windham. 
 
Since there were no other comments, the public hearing was closed.  Al Beaulieu 
made a motion to approve the application submitted by Starbucks Coffee Co. for a 
variance for a larger menu board and Susan Fiegel-Rapp seconded the motion.  
The motion carried unanimously.  

 
c) FJC Builders, LLC, 53 Winter Street, Willimantic – application for a variance 

from the side yard setback limits for a new deck. 
 

Planner Finger stated the new deck will be built on the side facing the railroad 
tracks.  The property is located on a rear lot at the end of a dead end road.  The 
Town sold the property for back taxes because the property had been abandoned 
after a fire, said Finger.  The old fire damaged buildings were demolished and the 
junk cars were hauled away.  The lot is very small, and due to the configuration of 
the house, the deck will be located on the side least likely to affect other 
neighbors. 
 
Frank Campanelli, owner of the property, said he is requesting a variance to add a 
deck to the house.  The property line is 12 feet from the house.  He said he is 
planning to add a 10-foot deck that will leave a 2-foot separation between the 
property line and the proposed deck.  Mr. Campanelli said the deck will be 5 feet 
off the ground.  There are no stairs and the deck will be enclosed.  Al Beaulieu 
asked if the deck could be reduced to 8-feet and make it longer.  Mr. Campanelli 
said it couldn’t be made longer, but if the board objects to the 10-foot deck he 
could make it 8 feet.   Chairman Coutu said there is a walk out from the basement, 

 3



where is that in proximity to the deck.  Mr. Campanelli identified the walk out on 
the map.   
 
A brief discussion ensued.  Charles Krich asked if the deck could be placed on the 
other side.  Mr. Campanelli said it would not be feasible to put it there.  Planner 
Finger said it is right up against the Gas Plant.  I can’t imagine it would be a great 
place to have a deck on that side.  Chairman Bob Coutu said it would be more 
palatable if the deck was reduced to 8 feet.  Charles Krich said he doesn’t see a 
hardship, but if the deck is 8 feet he could go along with it.  Al Beaulieu said the 
deck could be 8 feet and then he could go 14 feet longer.  Planner Finger said the 
minimum setback is 10 feet.  The rules allow for an encroachment into the 
setback area to 2 feet.  Al Beaulieu said the deck will be 8 X 12’ instead of 10 X 
12’.   
 
As there was no one to speak for or against the application the public hearing was 
closed.  Charles Krich made a motion to approve the application for a variance 
from the side yard setback limits submitted by Frank Campanelli to allow for the 
construction of a new deck with a stipulation that the deck be 12 feet along the 
length of the house and 8 feet away from the house per the application.  Al 
Beaulieu seconded the motion.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 
d) Theresa Wetherbee, 254 Mansfield Avenue – application for a variance from 

side yard setback limits for an addition to the existing home. 
 

Planner Finger said the applicant is seeking a variance from the side setback 
limits for a new porch addition to the rear of the existing home in the same 
alignment, as the house & Town staff has no objection to granting the variance. 
 
Rich Rustmann, contractor on behalf of Theresa Wetherbee, said he is proposing 
to build a 7X12’, 1-story, 3-season porch on the back of the existing house.  He 
said he would like to keep the sideline of the house in line with the addition.  
Right now, the house is 7 feet away from the property line.   
 
A brief discussion ensued.  As there were no other comments from board 
members, or from the audience, the public hearing was closed.  Al Beaulieu made 
a motion to grant a variance to Theresa Wetherbee, 254 Mansfield Avenue, from 
the side setback limits for an addition to the existing house and Charles Krich 
seconded the motion.  The motion carried unanimously.    
 

      Routine Business 
 
 Action on the minutes of December 6, 2007 was tabled until the next meeting. 
 
     Respectfully submitted, 
 
     Lillian Murray, Clerk 

 4


